
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

3 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation. 

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 7 - 8)

6 16/01839/MFUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton (Pages 9 - 12)

7 16/01250/MREM - Land South of Westgate, Old Malton, Malton (Pages 13 - 52)

8 16/01659/MFUL  - York Meadows, Sheriff Hutton (Pages 53 - 73)

Please Contact Ellis Mortimer/Karen Hood

Extension 271/386

Date of Publication 9 January 2017

E Mail ellis.mortimer@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 17 January 2017 at 6.00 pm
 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

     Agenda

Public Document Pack

http://www.ryedale.gov.uk/


9 16/00072/OUT - Land At Golden Square, Low Marishes (Pages 74 - 81)

10 16/01242/73A - Longhouse, Pottergate, Helmsley (Pages 82 - 106)

11 Unauthorised Encampment at Kirby Misperton 

12 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

13 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 107 - 113)

14 Update on Appeal Decisions (Pages 114 - 119)



Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 20 December 2016

Planning Committee

held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 20 December 2016

Present

Councillors  Burr MBE, Cleary, Cussons (Substitute), Farnell, Frank (Vice-Chairman), 
Goodrick, Elizabeth Shields, Thornton, Wainwright (Substitute) and Windress 
(Chairman)

In Attendance

Samantha Burnett, Gary Housden, Jill Thompson and Mel Warters

Minutes

107 Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor's Maud and Hope.

108 Minutes of meeting held on 22 November 2016

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 22 November 2016 be 
approved and signed as a correct record

[For  9 Against 0 Abstain 1]

109 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

110 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Item
Cleary 5
Burr 5
Shields 5
Thornton 5

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 20 December 2016

111 Part A Report - Publication of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan

Part A Report - Publication of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan

Decision

Members resolved to approve the response to the consultation as outlined in 
paragraphs 6.7, 6.35 and 6.37 of the report but requested that the responses in  
paragraphs 6.27-6.32 be amended ( in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Planning Committee) to express concern that elements of the  proposed 
hydrocarbon  policies were unsound . It was agreed that there was a need  for 
the Plan to provide explicit  protection for the Yorkshire Wolds and Vale of 
Pickering as well as the National Park and AONB. It was also agreed that 
representations should also be made regarding the effectiveness of the 500m 
buffer; the use of ‘unqualified’ loose language; the lack of a  requirement for 
proposals to be accompanied by Noise Assessments and for the monitoring 
framework to cover qualitative issues such as the impact on the local economy.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor's Cleary, Burr, 
Shields and Thornton declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial 
interest. 

112 Part B Report - Malton Food Enterprise Zone Local Development Order 
(LDO)

Part B Report - Malton Food Enterprise Zone Local Development Order 
(LDO)

Decision

The Planning Committee resolved to recommend to Council that the Local 
Development Order for the Malton Food Enterprise Zone is adopted.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

113 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations thereon.

Page 4



Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 20 December 2016

114 16/01820/MFUL - The Food And Environment Research Agency, Sand 
Hutton

16/01820/MFUL - Construction of an Edge-of-Field Waterbody Safety (E-
FloWS) Assessment Facility, with associated plant installations, including pump 
housing, effluent water tank, treatment plant, backwash water tank, GRP stores 
shed, landscaping, security and wildlife deterrent fencing and access

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against  0 Abstain  0]

115 16/01599/FUL - Land At Croft Farm, The Lane, Gate Helmsley

16/01599/FUL - Retention of mobile home, 2no. touring caravans, timber shed 
and area of hardstanding (retrospective)

Decision

REFUSED - As recommended

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

116 16/01635/HOUSE - The Old Pottery, St Nicholas Street, Norton

16/01635/HOUSE Erection of a detached double garage

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 0]

117 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

There was no other business.

Page 5



Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 20 December 2016

118 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) a list which gave details of the applications determined by the Head 
of Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of delegated decisions.

119 Update on Appeal Decisions

Members were advised of the following appeal decisions: 

Appeal ref APP/Y2736/W/16/3154175 - Land to the rear of The Croft, Nawton 
Road, Wombleton  YO62 7RJ

Appeal ref APP/Y2736/W/16/3157303 - Manor Farm Plot 1, Leppington, Malton 
YO17 9RL

Appeal ref APP/Y2736/D/16/3159383 - 12 Elm Grove, Sherburn, Malton YO17 
8PF

Appeal ref APP/Y2736/W/16/3156982 - High Roans, Sheriff Hutton Road, 
Strensall, York YO32 5TS

Meeting Closed at 8:50pm

Page 6



17/01/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/01839/MFUL

Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. holiday lodges in 

association with Canadian Fields campsite together with formation of site 

roads, car parking and turning areas and associated landscaping

6

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Canadian Fields Gale Lane Nawton Helmsley YO62 7SD 

16/01250/MREM

Erection of 24no. four bedroom dwellings, 9no. three bedroom dwellings 

and 6no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking, amenity 

areas and landscaping to include demolition and some rebuilding of existing 

site buildings (outline approval 14/00428/MOUTE dated 24.03.2015 refers)

7

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land South Of Westgate Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire  

16/01659/MFUL

Change of use of agricultural land to allow the formation of 30no. static 

caravan pitches and 42no. touring caravan pitches with formation of 

crushed stone access tracks together with erection of extension to existing 

site office/amenity block and the provision of a play area (part retrospective)

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: York Meadows Sheriff Hutton YO60 6QP 

16/00072/OUT

Erection of an agricultural workers dwelling

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Golden Square Low Marishes Malton North Yorkshire  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



17/01/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/01242/73A

Variation of Condition 12 of approval 12/00264/FUL dated 27.06.2012 to 

state 'The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plan(s): Drawing no. 968_AR50_06A' - 

replacement of plan 968_AR50_03 - increase in roof height to allow for 

additional domestic storage areas (retrospective application).

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Longhouse  Pottergate Helmsley YO62 5BY

Page 8



___________________________________________________________________________ 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

17 January 2017 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 

 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 

Item Number: 6 

Application No: 16/01839/MFUL 

Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Miss Jenny Bulmer 

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. holiday lodges 

in association with Canadian Fields campsite together with formation of 

site roads, car parking and turning areas and associated landscaping 

Location: Canadian Fields Gale Lane Nawton Helmsley YO62 7SD 

 

 

Registration Date:  15 November 2016  

8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  14 February 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 December 2016 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Neighbouring Parish Council   
Highways North Yorkshire Recommend refusal  

Parish Council Support application  

Lead Local Flood Authority No objection  

Environmental Health Officer   
Land Use Planning Comments made  

Caravan (Housing) No objection - informative to be added  

 

Neighbour responses:      Mrs Ailsa Teasdale,  

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

The above application was validated on 15th November 2016. The site is located approximately 1km 

south of Nawton village within the open countryside, that is also designated as an Area of High 

Landscape Value. The site operates as 'Canadian Fields' following the grant of planning permission 

for change of use of agricultural land to a campsite providing 'glamping' style accommodation for 19 

No. safari type tents in 2011. This proposal seeks an extension to the existing site to allow the siting 

of 28 No. holiday lodges, with associated site roads, car parking and landscaping.  

 

Members will be aware of the site history which includes: 

 

• 11/00686/MFUL - Planning permission granted 28.09.2011-  Change of use of agricultural 

land to allow the siting of 19 no. tents on decking bases, erection of toilet and reception block 

and canteen marquee, change of use of agricultural building to winter tent store, formation of 

vehicular access, gravel site roads and paths, car parking and landscaping. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



___________________________________________________________________________ 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

17 January 2017 

• 13/01122/73AM - Planning permission granted 16.12.2013 - Removal of Condition 06 of 

approval 11/01280/73AM dated 09.03.2012 to allow a year round opening season for the 

holiday occupation of the tents. 

 

• 14/00779/FUL - Planning permission granted 11.09.2014 - Change of use of reception, toilet, 

office and laundry store building to reception, toilet, office, laundry store and first floor 

wardens accommodation for use solely in connection with the operation of Canadian Fields 

campsite (retrospective application). 

 

Members will also recall that a temporary planning permission was authorised for a 2 year period for 

the erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp cafe (retrospective 

application) at the Planning Committee of the 18th November 2014. In addition at the same meeting a 

decision was made to taken enforcement notice requiring the cessation of the restaurant use (A3 use 

class) and the removal of the pre-fabricated kitchen building from the land after a 2 year compliance 

period. However, it has been brought to officers attention that an enforcement notice has not yet been 

served and these issues are  therefore also required to be reconsidered by Members.  

 

The current planning application is the subject of an objection from the Local Highway Authority, 

which can be viewed in full on the Council's website. The applicant has been made aware of this 

objection and is currently considering how the Local Highway Authority objections can be overcome.   

 

At this stage, given the early stage of processing the application and the known issue regarding 

highway safety, it is not possible to fully appraise the current application proposal and to make a final 

recommendation to Members. 

 

It is anticipated that a full report will be brought before Members at Planning Committee on Tuesday 

14th February 2017 which will also deal with any outstanding enforcement considerations. However 

the application has been brought to this Committee Meeting to enable Members to consider whether 

they wish to carry out a site visit in advance of the next meeting in order to fully appreciate the 

relationship with the extent of the current site, the on-going uses and the proposed application for 28 

no. additional holiday lodges. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Site Inspection  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

 

 

Item Number: 7 

Application No: 16/01250/MREM 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Appn. Type: Approval of Reserved Matters  Major 

Applicant: Broadacre Services Limited (Mr Andrew Garrens) 

Proposal: Erection of 24no. four bedroom dwellings, 9no. three bedroom dwellings 

and 6no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking, 

amenity areas and landscaping to include demolition and some rebuilding 

of existing site buildings (outline approval 14/00428/MOUTE dated 

24.03.2015 refers) 

Location: Land South Of Westgate Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  31 October 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  10 January 2017 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Public Rights Of Way Adjacent to Public Right of Way  

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Comments and recommendations made  

Building Conservation Officer Design concerns  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date  

Building Conservation Officer Object  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No objection  

Land Use Planning Drainage Strategy Report is satisfactory  

Lead Local Flood Authority No comments to make on the reserved matters  

Highways North Yorkshire Further information required  

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Need to consult with internal colleagues  

Parish Council No views received to date  

Lead Local Flood Authority No further comments to make  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No objection  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr Steve Watson, Mr Ernest Pallett, Mr David White, 

Dorianne Butler,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The Old Malton site is located to the south of Westgate, partly on the site of the former Council depot 

and the Coronation Farmstead.  Further to the south is a paddock which abuts Westfold and the rear of 

properties on Town Street.  The southern side of the site is bounded by the cemetery, allotments and 

continuation of the vehicular access serving the Royal Oak public house and five other residential 

properties. 

 

A public footpath abuts the eastern site boundary of the paddock area.  The site has a total area of 

approximately 2 hectares.  The area associated with Coronation Farm and the eastern extremity of the 

paddock area lie within the designated Conservation Area.  All of the Coronation Farm complex and 

the former Council depot area lie within the development limits.  The paddock area is outside of but 

immediately adjacent to the identified development limit for the village. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

 

There are no listed buildings located on the site, however, there are four traditional farm buildings 

which are considered to be worthy of retention and these are shown as retained structures on the 

proposed illustrative plans. 

 

Part of the site is located in Flood Zone 2 and the application has been accompanied by a detailed 

Flood Risk Assessment. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Following the earlier grant of outline planning permission in March 2015 this application seeks 

reserved matters approval for the erection of 24 four bedroom dwellings, 9 three bedroom dwellings 

and 6 two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking areas, amenity areas and landscaping.    

 

A separate application has been dealt with under officer delegated powers to vary condition numbers 

5, 16 and 17 of the outline planning permission and an application to discharge the requirements of 

nine other conditions is currently under consideration. The variation of conditions 5 accepts in 

principle the demolition of buildings 3 and 4 within the site with building 3 rebuilt in a similar style 

(Plot 6).  Buildings 1and 2 on the Westgate frontage are proposed to be retained as far as is 

practicable  in the building of the dwellings proposed for these plots - (Plots 1 and 38). 

 

RELEVANT HISTORY: 
 

Outline planning permission granted 24.3.2015 - Circa 35 dwellings  (Site area 2.0 hectares)  

Reference 14/000428/MOUTE 

 

POLICY: 
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The principle of development has already been established by the grant of outline planning  

 

In this case the following matters are considered to be relevant: 

 

• Impact on conservation area/heritage considerations 

• Design matters layout /street scene/ individual designs  

• Housing mix/Density 

• Impact on residential amenity 

• Impact on trees 

• Drainage matters 

• Highway considerations 

 

Impact on Conservation Area 

 

The Councils conservation officer had objected to the scheme as originally submitted stating: 

 

"This application confirms the detailed design for an application that was approved in outline. The 

site lies partly within the Old Malton conservation area and affects the settings of listed buildings, 

previously identified in my consultation response related to the outline application.  

Page 14



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

The site is therefore in a sensitive location, and should comply with the statutory duty under the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to ensure that the character and 

appearance of the conservation area is preserved or enhanced and that the setting of listed buildings 

is preserved. The character and appearance of the conservation area extends to both views looking in 

towards the conservation area and views looking through and out of it. A rural public right of way 

runs to the west of the site giving views into the conservation area looking east . The conclusion of the 

heritage report submitted with the outline application concluded that the effect of the proposals on the 

conservation area and nearby listed buildings will be negligible or neutral if the design is in keeping 

with the village.  

 

The outline permission included some detailed design parameters due to the sensitivity of the site. 

After design revisions throughout the planning application process the submitted documentation and 

parameters were considered to preserve the setting of the listed buildings and the character of the 

conservation area. These were considered to respond to the existing morphology of Old Malton and 

reflect the character and appearance of the context. This included, to the north of the site nearer 

Westgate, a new village street with a tight grain reflecting the dwellings within the conservation area 

and a looser more rural quality to the south of the site reflecting the rural edge to the village. 

 

The above current application for consideration proposes 'Erection of 24no. four bedroom dwellings, 

9no. 3 bedroom dwellings and 6no. 2 bedroom dwellings and associated garaging, parking, amenity 

areas and landscaping to include demolition and some rebuilding of existing site buildings (outline 

approval 14/00428/MOUTE dated 24.03.15). 

       

I have strong concerns with a number of aspects to these proposals. In my opinion the proposed 

layout of the northern part of the site does not reflect the urban morphology of the conservation area 

and therefore will appear out of character. The pattern and density of the layout shown bears no 

resemblance to the established urban morphology of the conservation area which includes terraces of 

cottages and other attached dwellings which are long and low. The spacing between the houses is too 

great and the contrived and overly staggered building lines are not representative of the surrounding 

context. Cars parked in front of the dwellings result in highly visible car s and a set back building line 

not representative of the conservation area. Garaging should be to the rear of the site with drive 

through parking/parking to the side of plots not in front. 

 

The form of the houses is too 'boxy' and suburban, giving simple rectangular or square forms and 

does not sufficiently pick up on the character of the conservation area which includes rectangular 

forms with lean-to's and cross wings.  The roof pitches on the single storey units is too shallow and in 

general, the gable widths are too wide.  

 

Plots 23, 24 and 25 are sensitive as they provide the transition between the soft rural edge and the 

built form. These should perhaps be lower in height, pushed forward away from the western boundary 

and reduced to 2 dwellings in that area.   

 

The detailed design of the scheme is too suburban and does not reflect the simple vernacular detailing 

of the cottages within the conservation area. These detailed comments are not exhaustive and in 

general the design should follow the simple vernacular found within the surrounding context. Details 

should include, for example chimneys on both gable ends. Double height bay windows could perhaps 

be reserved for the depth of the site as they are not reflective of the wider context which has a more 

simple vernacular form. Consideration could be given to the occasional use of corbels/kneelers to 

denote hierarchy. 

 

Plot 7 could be designed with an agricultural idiom reflecting its position behind the development and 

relating to Coronation Farm. 

 

More detail is required regarding the drainage soakaway and grass highway verges should be 

included within the public realm. 

 

Page 15



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

Details of house and street lighting should be included. This should be low key and reflective of its 

rural context on the edge of a village. Street name signs should be on boundary walls not dwarf posts 

if at all possible.  

 

Stronger definition is needed to plot 32 as it turns the corner. 

 

Single storey structures are reflective of the wider context however careful thought should be given to 

the position, location and design of them. Thought could be given to raising the eaves level.  

 

Plot 1 continue the existing beech hedge round to the east to close off the boundary and relate it to the 

conservation area where the existing gate is. Delete B1 close boarded timber fence from Plot 18A. 

This is a sensitive location in terms of the primary entrance to the cemetery. Stone boundary walls 

should be used on plots 1 and 39.  

 

There is a mixed palette of materials in the conservation area including stone, brick, painted brick, 

pantile, thatch, however slate and render are rarely used. Too much slate is included in the proposal. 

Delete plastic rainwater goods. Garage doors could be up and over but designed in a manner to look 

as side hung timber planked doors. Details of these should be included, including materials. 

 

With regard to the application to vary the condition that seeks the retention of some of the existing 

buildings on the site. I am of the opinion that the existing agricultural buildings strongly contribute to 

the character of the conservation area and that they should be retained and incorporated into this 

development as converted structures".   

 

Following further negotiations significant  amendments have been made to the layout and design of 

the dwellings proposed.  The BCO has acknowledged these amendments and makes the following 

additional comments: 

 

"In general terms, the layout of the development site better reflects the conservation area and I have 

no objection to the overall layout.  I do however have some detailed design concerns and I will go 

through plots numbers. These comments are notwithstanding the application that relates to the 

demolition of the traditional agricultural buildings on the site (16/01252/73AM) which I will address 

in a separate memo.  

 

Plots 1-5  (1x 'c' 4 x 'F') - acceptable 

Plot 6 - barn style rebuild - acceptable - see consultation response on 16/01252/73AM 

Plot 7 - (1x 'h') barn style rebuild - acceptable-see consultation response on 16/01252/73AM 

Plots 8, 9 (2x'f') - acceptable 

Plot 10 - (1x'e') bungalow - still wide gable span and shallow roof pitch. Consideration should be 

given to reducing the gable span and increasing the pitch of the roof. 

Plots 11-37 - acceptable 

Plot 38 -  (Type 'a' variation)- needs additional chimney on Westgate roadside 

Plot 39 - (Type 'b') - needs additional chimney on Westgate roadside 

 

General comments - more grass needed to be incorporated into highway verges. Further details of 

drainage soakaway needed (e.g. cross section). Street and house lighting information should be 

included. This should be low key and reflective of its rural context on the edge of the village.   

 

Plot 18 - close boarded timber fence still showing here. This is a sensitive plot close to the cemetery 

and a more sensitive boundary treatment should be used here (e.g. post and rail fence with a hedge).  

 

Stone boundary walls (not brick) should be used on plots 1 and 39 at the entrance to the 

development".   

 

Subject to further minor revisions to the scheme the proposal is considered to follow the spirit of the 

Design and  Access statement submitted as part of the original outline application and no objections 

are raised on heritage grounds.  

Page 16



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

 

Design 

 

The design approach is set out in the applicant's Design and Access Statement.   In essence the site is 

developed in two parts - with a more traditional 'street' format at the entrance from Westgate and a 

more open layout on the southern part of the site  which is currently an open paddock.  The northern 

part of the site provides for a scheme which has more visual linkage -akin to that found elsewhere on 

Westgate with a mix of individual designs that pick up on the simple detailing of dwellings found in 

Old Malton. The palette of material is limited to brick, stone clay pantile and slate which is also 

representative of the locality. 

 

Thirty nine dwellings in total are proposed comprising eight basic house types as described below.  

 

Composition of Dwellings Proposed on Latest Layout Plan 
 

39 Dwellings total - Variants of stone and brick walls and slate and pantile roofs 

 

Type A 9No. four bed units of this type in total.  Footprint measures 8 x 10.4 metres 

approx with eaves 4.95 metres and apex 8.2 metres.  Chimney details are 

shown on each gable end as requested by Building Conservation Officer - 

Plot 38 also incorporates an existing single-storey building adjacent to 

Westgate. 

 

Type B 7No. four bed units of this type.  Footprint measures 8 x 8.7 metres with 

eaves of 4.95 metres and apex of 8.2 metres.  Units shown with single 

chimney.  Extra stack request on Plot 39 which is adjacent to Westgate. 

 

Type C 6No. four bed units of this type with eaves of 4.95 metres and apex height of 

8.5 metes.  Two variants - one with apex height of 7.5 metres (Plot 30) and 

Plot 1 includes an existing single-storey unit which also fronts Westgate. 

 

Type D 6No. three bed semi-detached units are proposed with 5.2 metre eaves and 

8.1 metre apex. 

 

Type E 3No. 2/3 bed bungalows are proposed on Plots 10, 25 and 26.  Concern has 

been expressed over the extent of the span and shallowness of the roof pitch 

on Plot 10.  Further information is awaited. 

 

Type F 6No. 2 bed units of this type are proposed, with eaves of 4.95 metres and 

apex of 7.8 metres. 

 

Type G 1No. of this 'bespoke' house type which is a re-build of an existing 

agricultural building on site, with eaves and apex height of 3.8 metres and 

5.9 metres respectively. 

 

Type H (Plot 7) There is also a bespoke 'barn style' dwelling which is a four bed unit with 

eaves and apex heights of 3.9 metres and 6.8 metres respectively. 

 

 

 

The Building Conservation officer considers the designs to be largely acceptable aside from the detail 

of the single storey dwelling proposed for Plot 10.  This matter is currently under further 

consideration by the agent and Members will be updated at the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

Housing mix/density 

 

The application provide for the erection of 39 dwellings on a site of 2 hectares - equating to 

approximately 19.5 dwellings/hectare The mix and sizes of house types including 3 single storey 

dwellings is described above. Four affordable units are also proposed as part of the scheme.  It is 

considered that the overall mix and density is appropriate to the locality and that there are no 

sustainable objections on these grounds. 

 

Impact on Amenity 

 

The layout of the site provides for adequate curtilage and parking arrangements for the occupiers of 

the dwellings proposed.  Careful consideration ahs been given to the impact of the dwellings on 

adjacent dwellings . The revised plan now shows single storey dwellings on Plots 25 and 26 and the 

nearest house on Plot 24 has been moved further away from the boundary . This significantly 

improves the relationship with existing houses on Westfold. The amended layout is considered to be 

acceptable in terms of amenity issues for both existing and future residents at the site. 

 

Impact on trees  

 

The Tree and Landscape Officer  had expressed concern about the alignment of the footpath link next 

to Plot 18.  This has now been amended and no objections are raised in terms of any impact on trees. 

 

Drainage 

 

Technical detailed matters relating to foul and surface water drainage are being dealt with under a 

separate discharge of conditions application .  However  in broad terms fouls drainage is being dealt 

with by connection to the mains foul sewer and surface  water from the dwellings will link to 

soakaways. No objection is raised from The local Internal Drainage Board, the Lead Local Flood 

Authority or Yorkshire water. 

 

Highway matters 

 

NYCC Highways had raised concerns with the proposed detention basin.  This has now been deleted 

from the scheme.  The final comments from NYCC Highways are awaited in respect of the amended 

plans.  No objections however are anticipated to the number of dwellings proposed following from the 

earlier grant of outline planning permission. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Third party response: 

 

Original plans - 3 Responses 

• Too many dwellings /too dense 

• Parking problems/ too much traffic / concern over survey data 

• Detention basin- safety issue 

• Overlooking from Plot 26 

 

Amended plans 

 

To date 1 response. 

 

Too many dwellings/associated traffic issues on Westgate. 

 

The abovementioned comments have already been considered in the appraisal section of this report 

and in part addressed in the amendments to the scheme described above. 

 

Page 18



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017 

In summary the reserved matters application is considered to meet the requirements and expectations 

of the original outline permission  and subject to consideration  of the further minor revisions 

suggested by the Council's Building Conservation officer the application is recommended for 

approval. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

Item Number: 8 

Application No: 16/01659/MFUL 
Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: York Meadows Caravan Park (Mr D Armstrong) 
Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to allow the formation of 30no. static 

caravan pitches and 42no. touring caravan pitches with formation of 

crushed stone access tracks together with erection of extension to existing 
site office/amenity block and the provision of a play area (part 

retrospective) 
Location: York Meadows Sheriff Hutton YO60 6QP 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  16 January 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  9 January 2017 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Parish Council No objection but comments made  

Countryside Officer No views received to date  
Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend conditions  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Comments made  
Neighbouring Parish Council Concerns  

Caravan (Housing) No views received to date  

Land Use Planning No comments to make  
Foss Internal Drainage Board Recommend condition  

 
Neighbour responses: Ian Gordon,  

 

 

 

SITE:  
 
The application site comprises agricultural land, to the north of the C90 Sheriff Hutton to Strensall 

Road. The main body of the site measures 240m in length at its largest and 117m in width at its 
greatest. The site also includes a strip of land along the eastern field boundary immediately to the 

south-east of the application site. This strip of land contains the access to the site and curves in an 

easterly direction into the adjacent field and adjacent to the C90. The application site contains existing 
planting on the majority of its boundaries and within the site. The site is outside the development limit 

of any defined settlement and as such it  is located within the open countryside, within the Vale of 

York Landscape Character area. 
 

PROPOSAL: 

 
Planning permission is sought for the change of use of agricultural land in order to allow the 

formation of 30 no. static caravan pitches and to replace an area of camping plots with 42 no. touring 

caravan pitches with formation of crushed stone access tracks together with the erection of an 
extension to the existing site office/amenity block and children's play area (part retrospective). 

 
The proposed touring pitches are to be located on the northern part of the application site in an area 

approximately measuring 110 m by  85m, and the static pitches are to be located on an area 

immediately to the south on an area approximately measuring 110 m by 80 m. 
 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

Within the proposed static area, 3 rows each comprising 10 static units are proposed. Following 
negotiations a revised plan has been submitted that shows new planting along the southern boundary 

to be planted, with semi-mature species to augment the landscape screening within the 2016/17 

planting season. Furthermore the rows of statics are proposed to be phased, with the northern most 
row commenced in 2017, and then the middle and southern rows in 2018 and 2019 respectively. 

 

The proposed extension to the office/amenity block will approximately measure   3m by  6.75m and 
be  2.9m to the eaves height and  4.8m to the ridge height. It  is proposed to construct the extension of  

sandstone under a clay pantile roof. 
 

HISTORY: 
 
2006: Planning permission refused for the change of use of agricultural land to site for 38 touring 

caravans with associated vehicular access and road and erection of two amenity buildings.  

 
2007:   Planning permission granted for the change of use of agricultural land to site for 38 touring 

caravans with associated vehicular access and road and erection of two amenity buildings.  

 
2008: Planning permission granted for the siting of 15 no. static holiday caravans on part of approved 

touring site. 

 
2013: Change of use of agricultural land to allow the formation of a fishing pond for the use of 

caravan site residents with use of existing hardstanding area for associated parking and turning 

 

POLICY: 

 
National Policy 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 

National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 (NPPG) 
 

Local Plan Strategy 

 
Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy  

Policy SP8 - Tourism 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 
Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 
Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restrictions 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• The principle of the proposed development; 

 

• The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of the landscape; 

 

• Design and Appearance; 

 

• Highway safety; 

 

• Floor risk; and 
 

• Drainage. 
 

Page 54



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

Principle of Development 
 

The NPPF supports local planning policies that support sustainable rural tourism and leisure 

developments that benefit  the businesses in rural areas, communities and visitors and which respect 
the character of the countryside. This should include supporting the provision and expansion of tourist 

and visitor facilit ies in appropriate locations where identified needs are not met be existing facilities in 

rural service centres. 
 

Policy SP8 (Tourism) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states that tourism will be supported  
through the provision of a range and choice of quality tourist  accommodation. In the wider open 

countryside, new static caravan and chalet self catering accommodation and extensions to existing 

facilit ies that can be accommodated without an unacceptable visual intrusion and impact on the 
character of the locality will be supported. All year round tourism is supported subject to the 

occupancy conditions set out within Policy SP21 (Occupancy Restrictions). 

 
The proposed development will provide for the expansion of an existing tourism site within the Vale 

of York area of the District.  Planning permission has already been granted for 28 touring pitches on 

the site immediately to the north and 15 static units. The proposed extension to include 30 static units 
and 42 no. touring pitches represents an significant extension to the approved site.  

 

The Local Planning Authority has a requirement to ensure any new development is sustainable. The 
scale of the proposed tourist  site in total would be relatively large. However, it  is located to the 

southwest of a Service Village, Sheriff Hutton and a sustainable settlement.  There are facilit ies, such 

as a Public House and a shop in the village. The site is also well located for accessing the AONB, 
York and the North York Moors. Providing the scheme provides a pedestrian link to Sheriff Hutton it 

is considered that the application (at the scale proposed) can be regarded as a relatively sustainable 

form of tourism development in this case. 
 

The principle of the proposed development is therefore considered to be acceptable. 
 

Landscape impact 

 
Policy SP13 (Landscapes) states that development proposals should contribute to the protection and 

enhancement of distinctive elements of landscape character that are the result of historical and cultural 

influences, natural features and aesthetic qualities. 
 

The site is elevated from the road level, along with planting to the southern elevation of the 

application site. This has the effect of screening some views from the C90 road towards the proposed 
application site. However, additional planting is required in this planting season, of semi-mature 

container grown trees to augment the additional planting and to further limit views from the south 

western side. This is particularly important in the winter months. This planting has been agreed with 
the Tree and Landscape Officer and if planning permission is granted, is conditioned to be planted 

before 31st March 2017. A Phased development of the static units is proposed to further limit their 

visual impact. The static's are proposed to be located on the southern part of the application which is 
the most exposed area of the application site. 3 rows of 10 static units are proposed and these are to be 

developed from next year, with 10 each year starting at the northern side and working forwards 
(south). This will ensure that the new planting is already well established for the row nearest to the 

C90 by year 3. 

 
The proposed touring pitches are generally well screened by established landscaping. 

 

Subject to the proposed additional planting and phasing, the proposal is not considered to have a 
material additional adverse effect upon the Vale of York Landscape Character area. 

 

 
 

Page 55



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

Design and Appearance 
 

The applicant has indicated that that the proposed static units are to be externally clad in green colour 

or a wood finish, and a condition is recommended accordingly.  There is considered to be no objection 
to the proposed play area. Subject to the landscaping mentioned above there is considered to be no 

objections to the proposed development in terms of the design approach. 

 
Highway safety 

 
The Highway Authority has no  objection to the application on highway safety grounds in principle 

subject to the imposition of planning conditions relating to a new public footpath and parking 

provision. In making this assessment, the Highways Officer has confirmed the existing access can 
achieve the required visibility at the access point and that the existing junction can accommodate the 

additional traffic flows. The maintenance of the grass verges adjacent to the access is a continued 

requirement and this is controlled by a planning condition on an earlier planning application. It was 
agreed with the applicant following a site meeting, that the public footpath can be extended from the 

entrance to the Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate along the verge to the culvert to the north-east of the 

application site (approximately 150m in length). Between the bridge and the entrance to the site the 
applicant has agreed to maintain the grass verge so it  can be walked on to the bridge.   

 

Drainage 
 

The application proposes to drain surface water to soakaways. The applicant has confirmed foul water 

will be drained from the site via a package treatment plant, then to a soakaway. Yorkshire Water has 
stated no objection to the proposal. The  Environment Agency do not raise objection to the proposed 

discharge of surface water, although there consultation response does make recommendations 

regarding the disposal of surface water.  The Foss IDB similarly raise no objection and recommend a 
condition to cover matters of soakaway design and run-off rates.  An informative is recommended in 

this respect. 
 

Flood risk 

 
The application site is located within Flood Zone, representing the lowest risk of flooding. The 

Environment Agency has been consulted on the Flood Risk Assessment and does not wish to object to 

the application.  
 

The impact upon neighbouring properties 

 
It is not considered that the proposed development would have a material adverse effect upon the 

amenity of the adjoining neighbours in terms of potential noise and disturbance given its separation 

from other residential properties (minimum 150m from the proposed static unit  to the nearest 
property). 

 

Other issues 
 

Sheriff Hutton Parish Council has responded to the consultation and stated that they have no objection 
to the proposal subject to a satisfactory highways report. However, the Parish Council would like to 

see increased screening to the western approach and a footpath from the site as far as the industrial 

estate. Lillings Ambo Parish Council (neighbouring Parish Council) have stated concerns regarding 
the increased traffic flows through their village and the increased sewage and its management. 

 

There has been one letter of objection from the nearest property, The Hollies. That objection relates 
primarily to highway safety and the road layout close to the 'T ' junction to West Lilling and the site 

access. The objector considers this to be dangerous. Concerns have also been raised regarding 

increased road signage, litter and noise since the site began to operate. 
 

Page 56



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

The views of the Highway Authority has been addressed in the appraisal above.  The local Highway 
Authority has confirmed it  has no objections to the scheme and is satisfied that both the access to the 

site and surrounding highway network can safely accommodate the additional traffic.  A requirement 

for a public footpath from the entrance to Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate extending 150 to the south-
west to the bridge will be a planning condition. 

 

In principle, there is considered to be no objection to an onsite package sewage treatment plant, and 
its management is a matter for the applicant. 

 
The issue of litter is a management issue, and the noise associated with the proposed development is 

not considered to have a material adverse effect upon the amenity of  nearby properties, for the 

reasons described above. 
 

In view of the above the application is recommended for approval. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
    

 (NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached 
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the 

requirements of the condition discharged) 

   
 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  
3 Prior to the commencement of the development, a 20-year management plan for the 

establishment of the retention of the existing planting, boundary hedge/trees and all 

proposed planting shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in 
writing. 

    

 Reason:- To ensure that the existing landscape elements and proposed supplementary 
planting continue to screen and enhance the development and to satisfy Policy ENV7 of the 

Ryedale Local Plan. 

  
4 The touring pitches hereby approved shall only be used between 1 March and 31 October 

inclusive.  Outside this period, all touring caravans shall be permanently removed from the 
site. 

    

 Reason:- It  is considered that the touring caravans would constitute an unacceptable visual 
intrusion into the open countryside during the winter months and outside the holiday season.  

The reason also complies with Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 
  

 

 
 

Page 57



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

5 Any caravans occupied shall be done so for holiday purposes only and for no other purpose 
including any purpose in Class C3 of the Schedule to the Town & Country Planning Order 

1987 (or any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking or re-

enacting that Order with or without modification). 
    

 Reason:- In order to ensure that the caravans do not become permanently occupied as 

dwellings within the open countryside and to comply with Policies SP2 and SP21 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  
6 The owners/operators shall retain an up-to-date register of the names of all owners/occupiers 

of the touring caravans and static units on the site and their main home address, and shall 

make this information available at all reasonable times to the Local Planning Authority. 
    

 Reason:- In order to ensure that the holiday accommodation is not used for unauthorised 

permanent occupation and to comply with Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - 
Local Plan Strategy. 

  

7 The occupation of any of the touring holiday accommodation or tents, the subject of this 
permission shall only be used for holiday occupation to the same person, groups of persons, 

families for period(s) not exceeding a total of 28 days in any one calendar year.  The touring 

pitches on the site shall be used as the main residence of any occupant. 
    

 Reason:- It is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 

because of its location outside development limits and within the open countryside and to 
satisfy Policies SP2 and SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  

8 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved precise details of the 
surface water drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, including the location and percolation tests results in accordance with 
BRE Digest 365, in respect of soakaways.  

  

 If soakaways are considered inappropriate any drainage to land drains the peak run-off must 
be attenuated to 70% of the existing rate based on 140 l/s of connected impermeable area. 

  

 Reason:- In order to ensure that the site can be effectively drained and to satisfy Policy SP17 
of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

9 The static caravan development hereby approved shall be undertaken in a phased approach 
in accordance with the details contained on Plan No.  IP/DA/02/1 Rev B. 

   

 Reason:- In order to protect the character and appearance of the area and to satisfy Policies 
SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

10 The 30. no static units shall not be used and the site closed between 15th January and 1st 
March each year. 

  
 Reason:- To ensure the site is closed and the static units are not used for permanent 

residential accommodation and to satisfy Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 
 

11 The 30 no. static units hereby approved shall be available for commercial holiday lets for at 

least 140 days a year and no let must exceed 31 days in each calendar year. 
  

 Reason:- To ensure the site is closed and the static units are not used for permanent 

residential accommodation and to satisfy Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 
Plan Strategy. 

Page 58



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

12 Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority the planting detailed 
on Plan No. IP/DA/02/1 Rev B shall be undertaken before 31st March 2017. 

  

 Reason:- In order to ensure the site does not have a long-term adverse effect upon the Vale 
of York Landscape Character area and to satisfy Policies SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale 

Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 
13 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved precise details of the 

external colour of the caravans hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In order to protect the character  and appearance of the area and to satisfy Policies 
SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

14 The application site shall not contain more than 30 static units or 42 touring pitches. 
  

 Reason:- For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
15 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or 
other works until: 

  

 (i) The details of the following off-site required highway improvement works, listed below, 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority: 

  
 a. Provision of a 1.2 metre wide macadam footway with timber edgings to Highway 

Authority specification within the existing highway verge of York Road between the 
Industrial Estate entrance and the culvert under the highway south of the waste water 

treatments works, including any adjustments as may be required at existing access crossings 

and start/finish points. 
  

 (ii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the local Highway 
Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure that the details are satisfactory in the interests of the safety and convenience of 

highway users. 

  
16 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 

the Highway Authority, the development shall not be brought into use until the following 

highway works have been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority under condition 16: 

  
 (i) The details of the following off site required highway improvement works, listed below 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the local Highway Authority: 
  

 a. Provision of a 1.2 metre wide macadam footway with timber edgings to Highway 

Authority specification within the existing highway verge of York Road between the 
Industrial estate entrance and the culvert under the highway south of the waste water 

treatment works, including any adjustments as may be required at existing access crossings 

and start/finish points. 
  

Page 59



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

 (ii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the local Highway 

Authority. 

  
 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in 

the interests of the safety and convenience of highway users. 

 
17 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town & Country Planning General Permitted or 

Special Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on Drawing 
Number IP/DA/02/1 for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept available for 

their intended purpose at all t imes. 

  
 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety 

and the general amenity of the development. 
 

18 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 
  

 IP/DA/02/1 

 IP/DA/01 
 IP/DA/02/1 Rev B 

   

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

 

INFORMATIVES: 
 
1 The applicant/developer is advised to consider the consultation response of the Environment 

Agency dated 28 October 2016. 

 

2 In relation to Condition 16, an explanation of the terms used above is available from the 
Highway Authority. 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 
Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

17 January 2017 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 16/00072/OUT 
Parish: Marishes Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Outline Application 

Applicant: Mr A N Willis 
Proposal: Erection of an agricultural workers dwelling 

Location: Land At Golden Square Low Marishes Malton North Yorkshire  

 
Registration Date: 1 August 2016 8/13 Week  Expiry Date: 26 September 2016 

Case Officer: T im Goodall Ext: 332 
 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council Support 

Highways North Yorkshire No objection 
Countryside Officer Recommend condition 

Land Use Planning No views received to date 

Tree & Landscape Officer No views received to date 
Environmental Health Officer No views received to date 

 

Neighbour responses: None 

 
Overall Expiry Date: 26 August 2016 

 
2 

 

Members will recall that this application was deferred at the meeting held on 25 October 2016 in order 

for further consideration of the justification for the erection of a second dwelling at Golden Square Farm 
(Members are requested to refer to the earlier agenda papers). 

 

In particular, Members wishes to understand the claimed need for a second dwelling on site which 
might be justified by the agricultural needs of the visit , but also by the needs of other businesses which 

had located to the site complex since planning permission had been granted for their change of use to 
B1, B2 and B8 in 2004. 

 

Further information has been received from the applicant 's agent and in relation to the overall uses being 
carried out on site and the site has been re-inspected following receipt of that information.  The 

submitted information is currently not available to view on the application file because of commercial 

sensitivities.   
 

The additional information is currently under review by officers and a final recommendation will follow 

with the Late Pages. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Pending Recommendation   
 

 

Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 
National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 16/01242/73A 
Parish: Helmsley Town Council 

Appn. Type: Non Compliance with Conditions 

Applicant: Mrs Emmy Burdon 
Proposal: Variation of Condition 12 of approval 12/00264/FUL dated 27.06.2012 to 

state 'The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plan(s): Drawing no. 968_AR50_06A' - 
replacement of plan 968_AR50_03 - increase in roof height to allow for 

additional domestic storage areas (retrospective application). 
Location: Longhouse  Pottergate Helmsley YO62 5BY 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  23 September 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  23 November 2016 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Parish Council Object  

 
Neighbour responses: C F Button, Mr M Cooper,  
 

 

 

SITE:  

 
The site is situated to the rear of Pottergate within Helmsley Conservation Area.  It  was previously  

occupied by two garage buildings, one in concrete panels and the other traditional brick with a pitched 

roof.  However a dwelling was constructed on the site following the granting of planning permission 
in June 2012. The site is bounded to the immediate north by a row of relatively new stone terrace 

houses, with older residential properties to the south and south-east. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 
The revised plans show the following changes: 

 

• Increase in the eaves and ridge height of the building of approximately 0.5m; 

• Increase in number of roof lights on southern elevation from 4 to 5 single roof lights and one 

double roof light; 

• Increase in size of 'first  floor' window on western gable from 1.0m by 0.5m to 1.5m by 0.8m; 

• Emergency access to southern elevation (door in the boundary wall serving the courtyard); and 

• First floor room with stair access at western end of dwelling. 

 

HISTORY: 

 
Application 11/00678/FUL - October 2011: Application withdrawn for the erection of a two-storey 
dwelling 

 
Application 11/00679/CON - October 2011: Application for Conservation Area Consent withdrawn 

for demolition of two garages  

 
Application 12/00220/CON - 27 June 2012: Application approved for the demolition of existing 

garages 

 
 

Page 82

Agenda Item 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

Application 12/00264/FUL - 27 June 2012: Permission granted for the erection of a single storey 
detached dwelling 

 

Application 13/01364/73A - Application submitted to vary condition 12 - withdrawn 
 

Application 15/00987/HOUSE - Application submitted for installation of internal staircase to first 

floor loft  space. Withdrawn to allow submission of application to detail all the changes. 
 

For clarification, following the approval of application 12/00264/FUL in June 2012, work 
commenced on the construction of the approved dwelling.  However when work was well under way, 

a complaint was received that that a door was being formed in the southern elevation of the dwelling, 

that hadn't  been shown on the approved plans. The architect advised that this was installed to comply 
with building regulations as a secondary means of escape and is inward opening only. The applicant 

was advised that the change would necessitate an application for a minor material amendment to the 

approved plans. However a further complaint was then received that the ridge and eaves height 
appeared higher than the approved plans, that a first  floor was being installed and the installed 

windows were not in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
Officers visited the site, and confirmed that indeed the dwelling was not being constructed in 

accordance with the approved plans.  Officers again requested a revised application.  

 
In December 2013 an application was submitted to seek approval for: 

 

• An additional roof light on the northern elevation over the kitchen; 

• 2 high level roof lights above the inner hall on the south elevation; 

• An emergency exit door from the courtyard on the southern elevation; 

• A larger high level window on the western elevation; and 

• Increase in height. 

 
The application resulted in 4 letters of objection and an objection was also received from the Town 

Council. 

 
Correspondence was ongoing between officers and the architect, and a further site visit  was carried 

out inside the building. This demonstrated that habitable first  floor accommodation had been installed 

in part of the property, together with a mezzanine floor area within bedroom 2. It  was therefore agreed 
that the application be withdrawn to enable an application to be submitted that accurately showed all 

of the changes to the approved plans for further consideration. 

 
This application was followed in August 2015 by an application that was only for a new staircase to 

serve the 'loft ' area. This was submitted as a 'Householder' Application and clearly it did not address 

all the unauthorised changes made to the approved plans. Accordingly, the application was withdrawn 
in October 2015. The current application was submitted, and validated on September 23rd 2016. The 

application seeks a variation  of the approved plans secured by planning condition 12 of application 

12/00264/FUL. 
 

POLICY: 
 
Local Planning Strategy; Ryedale Plan – adopted 5 September 2013 

 
Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and distribution of housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and mix of new housing 
Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 - Design 
 

Page 83



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 
Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restriction 
 

National Policy Guidance 

 
National Planning Policy Framework, 2012 (NPPF) 

National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 (NPPG) 
 

CONSULTATION REPONSES: 

 
The Parish Council has objected to the application on the following basis:  

 

The Council objects to the increase in roof height on the grounds that it contravenes the original 
planning permission. The Council would also like to know why the building was allowed to be 

completed given its increase in height. 

 
A letter of objection has been received on behalf of three neighbours who live in Pottergate Mews 

(Nearest neighbouring occupiers to the south). 

 
The full letter is available to view on the Council's  public access system. The main points raised 

include: 

 

• The increase in ridge height is significant in the context of the development; 

• The height of the building was a recognised sensitivity from the start; 

• Photographs accompanying their letter show the shading of the gardens in early October and 

therefore it  is clear that later in the year, the shading will extend to the ground floor of the 
houses; 

• The first  floor accommodation is both carpeted and furnished, and is therefore not just storage 
but a first  floor room; 

• The increase in the size of the gable window is a clear intention to create a second residential 
floor; 

• Given the above point, the description of the application to 'increase in roof height to allow 
for additional domestic storage areas' is wholly misleading; and 

• If the increase in height is approved, our properties and others in Pottergate Mews will  

continue to suffer loss of amenity caused by shadowing from the dwelling.  
 

APPRAISAL: 
 
The principle of a dwelling in this location has been approved. The material considerations therefore 

relate to: 
 

• Appropriateness of revised design and impact on  the character of Helmsley Conservation 

Area; and 

• Impact of changes on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers. 

 
APPROPRIATENESS OF DESIGN: 

 
During the consideration of the original application (12/00264/FUL), the report to Planning 
Committee included the following paragraphs: 

 
 

 

 

Page 84



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

It is considered that its design is broadly traditional, incorporating a linear stone wall broken by 
occasional windows, under a pantiled roof.  It is considered that the design provides an appropriate 

link between the surrounding residential properties, and the form of outbuildings that are 

traditionally, often located to the rear of main streets. 
 

It is also considered that the height of the proposed dwelling respects the character of the 

Conservation Area.  Traditional buildings in backland locations often have a lower ridge height than 
more prominent street frontage locations.  The existing buildings on the site have no uniformity, and 

the concrete double garage detracts from the character of the area.  Section 72 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires special attention to be paid to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a Conservation Area.  In this 

case, it is considered that the scale and design of the development is appropriate, and will enhance 
the character of the Conservation Area.  Indeed, the Council’s Building Conservation Officer 

supports the design approach which has resulted from an analysis of local distinctiveness. 

 
The revised design still retains the same characteristics as that previously approved, i.e. a simple 

linear structure, constructed from stone under a natural clay pantiled roof. The eaves detail has been 

carried out in a traditional manner, and gutters are on rise and fall brackets. The windows and doors 
are  dark grey, and are a simple design that is reminiscent of a converted agricultural building. From a 

design point of view, the  enlarged opening at first  floor on the western elevation is of similar 

proportions to door openings that are known to exist on many former agricultural buildings. The 
additional roof lights are regrettable, as they break up the simple roof lines.  However overall, it  is 

considered that as constructed, the dwelling preserves the character of Helmsley Conservation Area. 

 

IMPACT OF DEVELOPMENT ON AMENITIES OF NEIGHBOURING OCCUPIERS: 

 
1. REVISED DOOR TO WESTERN ELEVATION AND INCREASED ROOF LIGHTS 
 

A neighbour has previously expressed concern regarding the additional door on the southern elevation 
at ground floor. The applicant has advised that the door was installed as an emergency access, and 

therefore will only be used on rare occasions. A neighbour queried (on a previous application) why 

such a door would be located  where it  provided access onto neighbouring property which was used 
for parking. For information the door does open inwards, and the applicant has confirmed that it will 

only be used in times of emergency. It is therefore not considered that the installed door, will have a 

significant adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  However if Members 
resolve to approve the application, it  is recommended that a condition be imposed restricting the use 

of the door. 

 
The increased number of roof lights is noted, however they are located within an extensive area of 

roof and are not considered to be obtrusive as built .  In addition given their location, it  is not possible 

that occupiers of the dwelling will be able to overlook the gardens or inside dwellings of neighbouring 
occupiers. Accordingly, there is no objection to this aspect of the changes. 

 

2. ENLARGED FIRST FLOOOR WINDOW ON WESTERN ELEVATION AND CREATION OF 
FIRST FLOOR ROOM 

 
The first floor window on the western gable of the  building was designed to provide light to the 

dwelling. The original plans did not include a first floor, and therefore neighbouring occupiers were 

satisfied that it  would not be possible to be overlooked from this window. Officers do not consider 
that the window will indeed result  in overlooking of any of the properties of those neighbours that 

have raised an objection to the application. Nevertheless, the decision made by Members for a 

dwelling in this location in close proximity to existing properties, was made on the basis of a single 
storey property, with a first  floor window that would not enable occupiers to obtain any view from it. 

Neighbouring occupiers are entitled to expect that the development would be carried out on that basis. 

Whether it  is possible to overlook neighbouring dwellings from the first  floor room, does not 
necessarily reduce the perception of being overlooked.  

Page 85



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

Furthermore, if the plans before Members now, were submitted originally, it is possible that it would 
have resulted in neighbour objections, with potential for a different decision being made. The 

submitted plans describe the floor as storage, however it  has stair access to it, and Building Control 

Officers have advised that there are no reasons why it  cannot be used as a bedroom under the Building 
Regulations. A recent inspection of the room has confirmed its occasional use when the applicant 's 

grandchildren visit .  The acceptability of this floor, together with the enlarged window is balanced.  If 

Members are minded to approve the plans, it  is recommended the decision is conditioned to require 
that the window is both fixed and obscure glazed. This will reduce the perception of being 

overlooked, and will also reduce the likelihood of the upstairs room being used as a bedroom on a 
permanent basis.  The ground floor kitchen window and window to Bedroom 3 are also required to be 

obscure glazed as required by the original planning permission. 

 
3. INCREASE IN HEIGHT OF DWELLING 

 

Members will note from the history section that a previous application on the site sought permission 
for a two-storey dwelling.  Indeed this is a matter that has been raised by neighbouring occupiers. The 

ridge height proposed on that occasion was 7.25m as opposed to a ridge height of 5.6m for the 

dwelling as constructed on the site. The proposed dwelling at that t ime also included a bedroom, 
bathroom, living room and balcony at first  floor level. Given officer concerns in relation to impact on 

neighbour amenity the application was withdrawn. This is clearly significantly greater 

accommodation than the plans currently before Members for consideration. The application was also 
withdrawn after officers expressed concern regarding the impact of the development on the existing 

amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  The applicant was, however, fully aware of the sensitivities 

regarding the erection of a dwelling in this location. 
 

During the consideration of the subsequently approved application in 2012, the impact of the 

development on the character of Helmsley Conservation Area, and on he existing amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers were key to the acceptability of the proposed development. Officers held 

meetings with the architect at the time to assess shadow analysis in order to better understand the 
likely impact. The analysis demonstrated, that existing buildings surrounding the site, together with 

the garages that currently occupied it , and the height of the boundary wall would in themselves create 

overshadowing of neighbouring properties at some times of the day and year. The report to 
Committee reflected the attention to neighbour impact and included the following paragraphs: 

 

'As discussed earlier, concern was expressed regarding a previously submitted two-storey 
development, and indeed, a letter has been received from a neighbour on this application advising 

that they do not object providing the building does not take light away from their property, and that 

there are no overlooking windows.  The dwelling currently proposed has a much lower ridge height at 
5m.  The dwelling will be sited approximately 11m from the nearest dwellings to the north and 

approximately 8.5m from the dwellings to the south.  The applicants have provided sun lighting and 

shadowing diagrams.  These demonstrate that the impact of the development is not significant at most 
times of the year.  This is partly due to the relatively low ridge height of the proposed building, and 

the existing boundary wall to those dwellings that lie to the north of the site.  The impact is greatest in 

the later months of the year when people are less likely to sit in their garden.  The orientation is such 
that whilst there may be some loss of day lighting, it is not considered that the development will have 

sufficient impact on the existing amenity of other houses in the area to warrant refusal of the scheme. 
It is noted that there are two windows facing the existing dwelling to the north, however, the use of 

obscure glass will reduce any potential for overlooking'. 

 
Given the recognition of the impact on neighbouring amenity, It is therefore particularly disappointing 

that the development was not  built  in accordance with the approved plans.  

 
 

 

 
 

Page 86



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

As part of the consideration of this application, officers requested, further shadow analysis to 
demonstrate the 'as built ' position compared to the approved position. The analysis shows the shadow 

projections at 12pm on April 20th, October 20th and December 20th. These show that in April at 

12pm, the increase in shadowing is  no greater than the shadowing caused by the boundary wall which 
raises between 1.5 and 1.6 metres in height. The impact is greater later in the year, and projects across 

more of the adjacent garden. In December the shadowing cast by the boundary wall reaches the front 

facade of the neighbouring properties, and the shadow from the dwelling slightly covers the front of 
the houses. However whilst  this occurs to a greater extent than would result  from the dwelling as 

approved, it  is still below the ground floor windows. This is borne out by submitted photographs from 
a neighbouring objector. It is acknowledged that the shadow analysis is a snapshot in time, and indeed 

there will t imes of the day later in the year when the extent of the shadowing may well be slightly 

greater when residents sitt ing in their gardens is less likely to occur. In addition, the shadow will not 
rise up to window level. Officers have also taken account of the potentially overbearing impact of the 

dwelling as constructed. 

 

CONCLUSION: 

 
Officers are of the opinion that the cumulative impact of the changes to the dwelling as built , when 
compared to the approved plans, will have an impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring 

occupiers. The decision is therefore particularly finely balanced. However taking account of the 

limitations on overlooking by virtue of the installation of obscure glazing, and the relatively small 
change in the level of overshadowing of neighbouring occupiers, the recommendation is one of 

approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The external door on the southern elevation of the dwelling  shall be retained as an inwards 
opening door, and shall be used for emergency purposes only. It  shall be kept locked except 

when required for emergency purposes, and shall not at any time be used as a general means 
of access or exit  from and into the dwelling.  

  

 Reason:- The location of a door in this position, providing access onto land outside the 
applicants control would not be otherwise acceptable, save in times of emergency, and to 

satisfy the requirements of Policy SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  
2 The first  floor window on the western elevation of the dwelling shall be fitted and 

permanently glazed with obscure glazing, details of which shall be submitted to, and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall be submitted for 
approval within 8 weeks of the date of this decision notice, and the approved glazing 

installed within 12 weeks of the date of this decision notice. 

  
 Reason:- In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policy SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  
3 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the site shall be 

developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and surface water.  Details of which 
shall first  be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of the satisfactory drainage of the site, and to satisfy the criteria 
contained in Policy SP17 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 

amending that Order), development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other 

than as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 
application in that respect: 

Page 87



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

  

 Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse  
 Class B: Roof alteration to enlarge a dwellinghouse  

 Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse  

 Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch  
 Class E: Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 

swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a 

dwellinghouse or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or 
enclosure. 

  
 Reason:- To ensure that the appearance of the area is not prejudiced by inappropriate 

materials or structures, to protect the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers, and to 

satisfy the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy SP12 and 
SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995, (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or amending that Order), no 

windows, other than those shown on the plans hereby approved, shall be formed in the walls 

or roof of the dwelling(s) hereby permitted without the prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority following a specific application in that respect. 

  

 Reason:- To safeguard the privacy and amenity of adjoining residents, and to satisfy the 
requirements of Policy SP 21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 The kitchen window and the window to Bedroom 3 on the dwelling hereby approved shall 
be permanently glazed with frosted or opaque glass, details of which shall first  be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason:- In the interests of maintaining the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers, 

and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP 21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

7 Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, development shall 

not commence until actual or potential land contamination at the site has been investigated 
and a Phase 1 Desk Study Report has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority, should further intrusive investigation be recommended in the 

Phase 1 Report or be required by the Local Planning Authority, development shall not 
commence until a Site Investigation Report and if required, or requested by the Local 

Planning Authority, a Remediation Statement have been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reports shall be prepared in accordance with 
Contaminated Land Report 11 and BS 10175(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of 

Potential Contaminated Sites. Submission of a verification report to be approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority will be required on the completion of any remedial work. 
  

 Reason:- To satisfy the requirements of para 121 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 
 

8 No development  shall take place within the application site until the developer has secured 
the implementation of a programme of archaeological works in accordance with a written 

scheme of investigation submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 
  

 Reason:-  The site is of archaeological interest and investigation/protection and observation 

of the site and the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and SP12 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  

  
 

Page 88



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

17 January 2017  

 

9 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the site shall be 
developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and surface water.  Details of which 

shall first  be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason:- In the interests of the satisfactory drainage of the site, and to satisfy the criteria 

contained in Policy SP17 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 
10 Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise details of all gutters and down pipes shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
  

 Reason:- In the interests of visual amenity, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP12 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  
 

11 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance with the 

submitted report on protected species by Julian Hall. 
  

 Reason: To satisfy the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 

SP14 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and 
the provisions of the Conservation Regulations 1994 as amended. 

 

12 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s):. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 
Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

PERIOD 12 DECEMBER 2016 - 6 JANUARY 2017 

  

 

1.  
Application No: 15/00410/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council 

Applicant: Autism Plus (Mr Craig Sutherland) 
Location: Land At Gilling East Helmsley North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Standing of steel container for horticultural storage use together with additional 
landscaping to east and west boundaries of the site 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  

Application No: 16/01138/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate 

Location: Wall Attached To 50 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Display of 1no. non-illuminated wall-mounted sign to south-facing wall of the 
Vanbrugh arch 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3.  

Application No: 16/01139/LBC    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate 

Location: Wall Attached To 50 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire   
Proposal: External alterations to include display of 1no. non-illuminated wall-mounted sign to 

south-facing wall of the Vanbrugh arch 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4.  
Application No: 16/01589/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Spectrum Solicitors (Mr Peter Rattray) 
Location: 49 Wheelgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7HT 

Proposal: Change of use of offices (Use Class B1) to solicitors (Use Class A2) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

5.  
Application No: 16/01598/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Ms Debbie Bryant 
Location: 9 Castle Road Pickering YO18 7BA 

Proposal: Installation of a balcony to rear elevation of lower floor 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

6.  
Application No: 16/01601/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Acklam Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Smith 
Location: 1 Melton Cottages  Main Street Acklam Malton YO17 9RG 

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to side and rear elevations 

and formation of vehicular access 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Page 107

Agenda Item 13



7.  

Application No: 16/01641/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 
Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Applicant: Mrs Sarah Jane Barker 

Location: Westow Grange  Gally Gap Westow YO60 7LU 

Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension with raised patio area and relocation of 

existing LPG tank 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

8.  
Application No: 16/01642/LBC    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Applicant: Mrs Sarah Jane Barker 
Location: Westow Grange  Gally Gap Westow YO60 7LU 

Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension with raised patio area to include removal of 

existing outhouse 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9.  

Application No: 16/01653/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Barton-le-Street Parish Meeting 
Applicant: Rory Kemp Ltd (Mr R Kemp) 

Location: Glebe Farm Butterwick Road Barton Le Street Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6PP  

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of livestock following removal of 
the existing agricultural building 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

10.  

Application No: 16/01667/FUL    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Robert Smith 

Location: Shepherds Hill Farm Whitby Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7NE  
Proposal: Erection of an American Barn style block of 5no. stables with bedding and feed area 

and first  floor tack room with balcony following removal of existing steel framed 

building used as stables 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

11.  

Application No: 16/01678/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Burythorpe Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr Ricky Francis 

Location: Farm Buildings At Aldmoor Farm Penhowe Lane Burythorpe Malton North 

Yorkshire   
Proposal: Erection of an open sided agricultural barn for general purpose agricultural storage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

12.  

Application No: 16/01701/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Applicant: Andrew Cobb 

Location: 10 Springfield Terrace Sherburn Malton YO17 8QG 

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to side and rear elevations to 

include integral garage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 108



 

13.  
Application No: 16/01708/TELN56    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Everything Everywhere 
Location: Land At Hall Farm Station Road Gilling East Helmsley   

Proposal: Erection of a 15m high telecommunication mast and associated equipment cabinets 

within a 1.2m high fenced compound 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14.  

Application No: 16/01711/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting 
Applicant: Mr And Mrs R Parker 

Location: 4 The Barns Station Road Gilling East Helmsley YO62 4JW  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension with loft  above to dwelling, single storey 
extension to garage to provide additional domestic accommodation and porch to 

dwelling 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

15.  
Application No: 16/01727/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Andy Prout & Mrs Liz Prout 
Location: 9 West End Kirkbymoorside YO62 6AD  

Proposal: Installation of 2no. conservation rooflights to front elevation and 2no. dormer 

windows and 1no. conservation rooflight to rear elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16.  

Application No: 16/01724/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr Gary Dolan 

Location: 3 West Garth Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8PN  

Proposal: Erection of pitched roof above existing attached garage (retrospective) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17.  

Application No: 16/01728/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 
Applicant: Mr P France 

Location: Cheesecake Hill House Beverley Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9PJ  

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to front and side elevations to 
form covered parking area with additional domestic accommodation above and 

entrance lobby 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

18.  
Application No: 16/01729/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scagglethorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mrs Marian Hodgson 
Location: Moorstones Main Street Scagglethorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8DT  

Proposal: Erection of flat roofed side extension to south elevation linking to existing detached 

double garage that is being partly converted to additional domestic accommodation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 109



 

19.  
Application No: 16/01731/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Martin Smith 
Location: 44 Westgate Pickering YO18 8BA 

Proposal: External alterations to include installation of replacement timber patio doors to rear 

elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

20.  

Application No: 16/01765/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Mr And Mrs Chris Wier 

Location: Pasture House Outgang Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7BR  

Proposal: Change of use and alterations of attached pool hall to form three-bedroom detached 
dwelling to include erection of first  floor extension and single storey ground floor 

extension to side and rear elevations following removal of existing linking sun room 

and attached plant room 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

21.  

Application No: 16/01774/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Entrust Professional Services Ltd 

Location: Land North Of Pyramid Systems Showfield Lane Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Installation and operation of a series of purpose built  battery energy storage units 
together with a transformer, underground cabling, security fencing, CCTV poles, 

cameras and other associated development, for the purpose of operating a battery 

energy storage facility 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 16/01779/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Dunnett 

Location: Land Adjacent Beacon Cottage Middleton Road Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a one-and-a-half storey 4no. bedroom dwelling and detached garage 
following demolition of existing outbuilding (revised details to approval 

15/00953/FUL dated 28.04.2016) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

23.  
Application No: 16/01780/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Harrison 
Location: The Old Rectory  23 Hallgarth Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AW 

Proposal: Erection of orangery to west elevation following the demolition of existing 

greenhouse. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

24.  

Application No: 16/01781/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Harrison 

Location: The Old Rectory  23 Hallgarth Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AW 

Proposal: Erection of orangery to west elevation following the demolition of existing 
greenhouse. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 110



 

25.  
Application No: 16/01793/LBC    Decision:  Partial Approve/Refuse 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Miss Jennifer Allanson 
Location: 63 Westgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AZ  

Proposal: Demolition of internal dividing wall between kitchen and dining room and 

installation of wood burning stove. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

26.  

Application No: 16/01805/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr RD Pridden 

Location: Ford View  Brookside Hovingham YO62 4LG 

Proposal: Application of self-coloured render to rear and side walls of existing rear extension 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

27.  

Application No: 16/01806/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr RD Pridden 

Location: Ford View  Brookside Hovingham YO62 4LG 

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include installation of rear-facing external wall, 
replacement roof and self-coloured render to existing porch to form additional 

domestic living space together with refurbishment of existing outbuilding to include 

installation of recessed stone panel to existing doorway and replacement 
timber-framed window to side elevation and opening of internal wall 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

28.  

Application No: 16/01815/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Stephen Hanson 

Location: Beckside Lendales Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8EE  
Proposal: Erection of a 1.2 metre high post and rail fence along west facing boundary 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

29.  

Application No: 16/01826/FUL    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Ebberston Parish Council 

Applicant: Admiral Taverns Ltd 

Location: Grapes Inn  High Street Ebberston Scarborough YO13 9PA 

Proposal: Erection of detached single garage following removal of detached double garage and 

erection of single storey extension to south elevation of attached outbuilding 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

30.  
Application No: 16/01827/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Ebberston Parish Council 

Applicant: Admiral Taverns Ltd 
Location: Grapes Inn  High Street Ebberston Scarborough YO13 9PA 

Proposal: External alterations to include erection of detached single garage following removal 

of detached double garage and erection of single storey extension to south elevation 
of attached outbuilding 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 111



 

31.  
Application No: 16/01831/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Alan Robinson 
Location: Dovecote Keldholme Priory Village Street Keldholme Kirkbymoorside YO62 6LZ  

Proposal: Erection of conservatory to rear elevation following demolition of existing 

conservatory (revised details to approval 16/01079/HOUSE dated 02.08.2016) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

32.  

Application No: 16/01835/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr James Shaw 

Location: Dorlin House Cornborough Road Sheriff Hutton YO60 6QJ  

Proposal: Formation of vehicular access to serve land to rear of Dorlin House 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

33.  

Application No: 16/01836/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirby Misperton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr S Bulmer 

Location: The Corner Ashfield Caravan Park Main Street Kirby Misperton Malton North 

Yorkshire YO17 6UU  
Proposal: Erection of detached 2no. bedroom dwelling with associated vehicular access and 

parking following demolition of existing 2no. bedroom dwelling 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

34.  
Application No: 16/01845/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Coulson 
Location: 41 Castle Howard Drive Malton YO17 7BA 

Proposal: Erection of attached car port to east elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

35.  
Application No: 16/01856/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Ricky Francis 
Location: Manor Rise Chapel Lane Westow Malton YO60 7ND  

Proposal: Erection of two storey extension and dormer window to east elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

36.  
Application No: 16/01859/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Edstone Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr A P And Mrs A Moody 
Location: Innisfree Marton YO62 6NY  

Proposal: Change of use of dwelling and garden to a mixed use of dwelling (Use Class C3) and 

venue for wedding ceremonies (Use Class B1) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

37.  

Application No: 16/01861/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 
Applicant: Mrs Sharon Hodgson 

Location: 17 Maudon Avenue Pickering YO18 7EJ 

Proposal: Erection of conservatory to rear elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Page 112



 

38.  
Application No: 16/01883/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Jon Hill 
Location: Oak Lea Village Street Keldholme Kirkbymoorside YO62 6ND  

Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension (revised details to part of approval 

16/00859/HOUSE dated 05.07.2016) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

39.  

Application No: 16/01884/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish 
Applicant: Mr Anthony Dobson 

Location: Rowan Croft Middleton Carr Lane Middleton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8PU  

Proposal: Erection of front entrance porch 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

40.  

Application No: 16/01891/CLEUD    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Heslerton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr David Munro 

Location: Ashdale Farm  Carr Lane East Heslerton Malton YO17 8RP 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness in respect of the occupation of the dwelling known as 
Ashdale Farm in breach of the agricultural occupancy condition of approval 

3/60/11C/PA dated 18.05.1989 for a period greater than 10 years before the date of 

this application 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 113



  

 
 

 
 

 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 25 November 2016 

by Susan Wraith DipURP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date:  6 January 2017 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 
Land at Partings Farm, Ebberston, Scarborough, North Yorkshire, 
YO13 9PA 

 The appeal is made under s174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 [hereafter 

“the Act”] as amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991. 

 The appeal is made by Mr Albert Craggs against an enforcement notice issued by 

Ryedale District Council. 

 The notice was issued on 11 February 2016.  

 The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is: Without planning permission, 

the material change of use of the land known as Partings Farm, to a mixed use for 

purposes of agriculture and motorcycle riding, including trials of skill, motorcycle racing, 

including trials of speed, and practising for such activities, together with the 

construction of a permanent track and car park including the formation of jumps, man-

made hollows, berms, corner banking, all to facilitate some or all of those activities. 

 The requirements of the notice are:  

i. 

ii. 

 

 

iii. 

 

 

 

iv. 

 

v. 

 

 

vi. 

Cease the use of the Land for the riding of motorcycles or motor sports activities; 

Permanently remove from the Land the track, including the jumps, man made 

hollows, berms, corner banking and obstacles created by mounds of soil within  

the track, reinstating the ground to its original ground levels; 

Permanently remove from the Land all items that are supporting or associated  

with the unauthorised motor sports including the lengths of fencing, individual 

timber posts, lengths or rope between timber posts, sign boards, banner  

signs and staging/pallets. 

Permanently remove the stonechips/hardcore access track and car park on the  

part of the Land shown hatched on the attached plan; 

On completion of steps i-iv, grade the Land so that the contours of the Land are 

restored to their former natural levels, and cultivate the Land leaving it in a 

condition suitable for agricultural use; 

Remove the static caravan from the Land. 

 The period for compliance with the requirements is 30 days. 

 The appeal is proceeding on the grounds set out in s174(2)(b) and (f) of the Act.   
 

Decision 

1. It is directed that the enforcement notice be corrected by: 

 (a) In paragraph 2., deletion of “edged red” and substitution of “hatched red”;  
 (b) In paragraph 3., deletion of “the land known as Partings Farm” and 

substitution of “the Land”; 
 (c) In paragraph 3., deletion of “car park” and addition of “and the formation of 

a parking area” at the end of the sentence; 

 (d) In paragraph 5.i., deletion of “or” and substitution of “and”; and 

Page 114

Agenda Item 14



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 
 

 
2 

 (e) In paragraph 5.iii., deletion of “lengths or rope” and substitution of “lengths 

of rope”.  

 It is directed that the enforcement notice (as corrected) be varied, in paragraph 

5., by: 

 (a) Deletion of steps iv. and vi.; 
 (b) Re-numbering of step “v.” to “iv.”; and 

 (c) Within re-numbered step iv., deletion of “steps i-iv” and substitution of  
  “steps i.-iii.”. 

 Subject to these corrections and variations the appeal is dismissed and the 
enforcement notice is upheld.   

Preliminary matter 

2. Interested parties have commented on (amongst other things) noise, visual 
effects and highway safety.  However, there is no appeal made on ground (a)1 

and, thus, no deemed planning application arises.  These matters, which concern 
the planning merits of the development, are not ones which I can take into 
account in my consideration of the grounds of appeal that are before me.   

Matters concerning the enforcement notice 

3. Before proceeding to consider the appeal under grounds (b) and (f) and the merits 

of the arguments I must, first of all, be sure that the notice is in good order.  The 
allegation is framed as a “mixed use”.  In mixed use cases the allegation should 
refer to all the components of a mixed use.  At my site visit I saw that there was a 

farmhouse and a second caravan within the land edged red on the enforcement 
notice plan.  It appears that “residential use” should also have been a component 

of the mixed use, together with agriculture and the motorcycle sport use referred 
to in the notice. 

4. I have considered correcting the notice to add “residential use”.  However, I 

cannot be sure (from the evidence before me) of the lawful status of such use and 
both parties may have wished to develop further arguments had the notice been 

framed in that way.  I would not be able to make the notice more onerous by 
adding additional requirements.  I am also mindful of the provisions of s173(11)2 
of the Act which would result in any component not enforced against gaining 

deemed planning permission.  I have concluded, therefore, that I would not be 
able to correct the notice in this way without causing injustice to both the 

appellant and the Council. 

5. Another way in which I can consider correcting the notice is to limit its effect to 
the area hatched red, that being a smaller area within the wider land and being 

the land on which the motorcycle activities actually took place.  In identifying the 
wider area the Council may have wished to guard against the spread of the 

unauthorised activity.  However, it would not be precluded from taking further 

                                       
1 An appeal brought under s174(2)(a) of the Act is that, in respect of any breach of planning control which may be 
constituted by the matters stated in the notice, planning permission ought to be granted. 
2 S173(11) of the Act provides that where an enforcement notice in respect of any breach of planning control could 
have required buildings or works to be removed, or an activity to cease, but has stipulated some lesser 
requirement, (under enforcement), which has been complied with, then, so far as the notice did not so require, 

planning permission shall be deemed to be granted under s73A for that operation or use. 

Page 115



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 
 

 
3 

enforcement action in that eventuality.  The corrected notice, albeit covering a 

smaller area, would still serve a useful purpose. 

6. As the unauthorised use was seasonal and undertaken at weekends (albeit its 

physical changes remained throughout), and the land was within an existing 
working farm, I cannot rule out the possibility of some agricultural use also taking 
place on the hatched land at other times.  I shall, therefore, leave the allegation 

framed as a mixed use with “agriculture” as a component together with the 
motorcycle sports activities. 

7. There is a further matter at paragraph 5.i. of the notice.  To make clear that the 
notice requires cessation of both the riding of motorcycles and motor sports 
activities (rather than requiring one or the other) I shall delete “or” and substitute 

“and”.  When reading the notice as a whole a recipient would understand that this 
is what was intended.  The correction will add clarity. 

8. Additionally there is a typographical error at paragraph 5.iii. in that there is an 
erroneous “or” in the phrase that should read “lengths of rope”. 

9. I shall correct all the abovementioned errors under the available powers of 

s176(1)(a) of the Act.  I am satisfied that no injustice will arise to either party in 
me so doing. 

The appeal on ground (b) 

10. An appeal on ground (b) is that the matter alleged has not occurred as a matter of 
fact.  My consideration of the appeal on ground (b) is made taking into account 

the corrections which I have identified in the above paragraphs.  

11. Ground (b) is argued only in respect of the alleged “car park” and 

“stonechips/hardcore access track”.  An appeal on ground (b) is mainly concerned 
with the wording of the allegation.  The access track is not expressly included 
within the allegation at paragraph 3. of the notice although its removal is required 

under paragraph 5..  This is a matter more appropriately considered under ground 
(f).   

12. With regard to the “car park”, the allegation (when read literally) suggests that a 
car park has been “constructed” on the land as an integral part of the material 
change of use.  The appellant disputes that any such car park has been 

constructed.   

13. The main parking area (within a field to the rear of the farm buildings) was 

pointed out to me at my visit.  However, there is no suggestion in the evidence, or 
within the notice itself, that specific works had been carried out to that area to 
construct a car park.  It appears that vehicles simply parked on the field.  This 

area has now been returned to agricultural use.  It cannot be deduced that the 
small amount of hardcore which I saw at my visit, sparsely spread around the 

entrance to the field (as is typically seen elsewhere on the farm) amounts to 
works for the construction of a car park.   

14. The Council’s “car park” evidence focuses upon a relatively level area to the front 
and side of the caravan (positioned towards the northern boundary of the hatched 
land) which, the appellant says, was pre-existing and has not been altered.  

However, undated photographs supplied by the Council (said to have been taken 

Page 116



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 
 

 
4 

at an initial site visit) show deposited material (possibly soil) around the banking 

of the area and a scattering of hardcore across parts of its surface.  The 
photographs show a van and a couple of other vehicles parked within this area 

together with picnic tables to the front of the caravan and a portable toilet to the 
side. 

15. I note that the caravan was used as an office, shop, tuck shop and first aid room 

in connection with the motorcycle use.  It is likely the minor works, which appear 
to be evidenced in the photographs, were undertaken to facilitate the use of this 

area for parking and other activities associated with this use of the caravan.  
However, to describe the works as the construction of a car park is (from the 
evidence) to overstate the extent of works which were carried out.  These 

relatively limited works, to bring into use for parking this existing level area, can 
be more appropriately described as works for the formation of a parking area.     

16. I shall deal with this matter as a correction to paragraph 3 of the notice which I 
can make under the available powers without injustice to either party. 

17. There is no dispute that the change of use alleged at paragraph 3 of the notice has 

occurred as a matter of fact.  It is agreed that the works to facilitate the use, 
which are listed in the allegation, took place.  That is with the exception of the 

alleged car park, a matter which I intend to deal with as a correction to the notice.  
The appeal on ground (b) succeeds only to that limited extent. 

The appeal on ground (f) 

18. I shall consider the appeal on ground (f) as though the notice now includes all of 
the intended corrections. 

19. An appeal on ground (f) is that the steps required by the notice exceed what is 
necessary to remedy the breach or, as the case may be, to remedy any injury to 
amenity that has been caused by the breach3.  The words “as the case may be” 

indicate that the main purpose of the notice should fall within one or the other 
category. 

20. Unlike an appeal on ground (a), where the full planning merits of a development 
can be considered, an appeal on ground (f) is constrained by the Council’s purpose 
in issuing the notice.  In this case, the notice requires cessation of the use and 

complete removal of the works which facilitated it and restoration of the land to its 
former condition.  The purpose of the notice is to “remedy the breach”.  The 

appeal is limited to the consideration of the steps necessary to achieve that 
purpose. 

21. Ground (f) is argued only in respect of steps iv. and vi. which I shall consider in 

turn.   

22. Step iv. concerns, firstly, the removal of the stonechip/hardcore access track.  

However, there is no apparent “access track” within the land covered by the 
notice.  There is a farm track bordering the eastern boundary but this track was 

pre-existing and is outside of the land covered by the notice in any event.  The 
motorcycle track, which is within the land covered by the notice, is not an “access” 
track and its removal is already covered by steps ii. and v..  The requirements of 

                                       
3 These provisions are set out in s174(1)(f) of the Act.  They reflect the purposes of an enforcement notice that 

are set out s173(4). 

Page 117



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 
 

 
5 

an enforcement notice should derive from the allegation but there is no reference 

to an “access track” within the allegation.   

23. Step iv., secondly, requires removal of the car park although is unclear because it 

does not specify the works to achieve the removal of the car park.  However, I 
have found that the formation of the parking area comprised only minor works to 
pre-existing relatively level ground.  I consider step v., which requires the grading 

and cultivation of the land, would sufficiently deal with the works necessary to 
restore the land affected by the formation of the parking area to its former 

condition.   

24. I therefore find that the requirements in step iv., to remove the access track and 
the car park, as well as lacking clarity, are excessive.  I shall vary the notice by 

deleting step iv.. 

25. With regard to the requirement at step vi. (removal of the static caravan) the 

appellant has argued that the static caravan was brought to the land in or around 
20114 and was in use for human habitation during 2012 and 20135.  It was later 
used as a shop, office and first aid room in connection with the motorcycle use.  

However, a requirement for its removal (it is argued) is excessive as it was not 
brought onto the land for the purpose of the enforcement use.  

26. The Council do not dispute that a caravan was once on the land but say that, in 
October 2013 (according to the Council Tax records) notification had been given 
that the caravan had been removed.  The appellant says that he was not aware of 

such notification although comments that the previous occupiers would have 
liaised with the Council on Council Tax matters.  According to the appellant the 

caravan remained on the land.   

27. The appellant is well placed to know at first hand the history of the caravan.  
There is no evidence from the Council that it had visited the site to verify its 

removal.  Neither is there any documentary evidence in the appeal submissions 
which throws doubt upon the appellant’s version of events.  On the balance of the 

evidence I consider it more likely than not that the caravan remained on the land 
and was already in situ at the time of the change of use, the subject of this 
appeal. 

28. Under s1736 of the Act, in remedying the breach, an enforcement notice may 
specify steps to restore the land to its condition before the breach took place.  

However, the land before the breach took place included the pre-existing caravan.  
Additionally, there is no reference to the siting of a caravan in the allegation at 
paragraph 3 of the notice from which a requirement for its removal could derive.   

29. Step 5.i. is sufficient to cover the cessation of use of the caravan as a shop, office 
and first aid room as it requires cessation in the use of the Land as a whole for the 

riding of motorcycles and motor sports activities and would cover all other 
incidental activities.  The Council would not be precluded, outside of this appeal, 

from pursuing matters concerning the legitimacy of the caravan as it sees fit.  
However, its removal cannot be required through this enforcement notice. 

                                       
4 There is an invoice for electrical connection dated 9/10/2011. 
5 A Council Tax invoice indicates that the caravan was occupied between June 2012 and March 2013.   
6 S173(4)(a) states that, where the purpose of a notice is to remedy the breach, steps shall be specified to achieve 
that purpose ”by making any development comply with the terms (including conditions and limitations) of any 
planning permission which has been granted in respect of the land, by discontinuing any use of the land or by 

restoring the land to its condition before the breach took place”. 

Page 118



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 
 

 
6 

30. For all these reasons I conclude that the requirement for the removal of the 

caravan is excessive.  I shall, therefore, delete requirement vi..   

31. As a result of the deleted steps some re-numbering within paragraph 5. of the 

notice will be necessary.   

32. There is no dispute about the remaining steps of the notice including the 
requirements to cease the use, remove the track and to restore the land.  The 

appeal on ground (f) succeeds only to the limited extent of the deletion of steps 
iv. and vi.. 

Conclusion 

33. Except to the limited extent identified under grounds (b) and (f), I conclude that 
the appeal should not succeed.  I shall correct the notice and vary its 

requirements prior to upholding it.    

Susan Wraith 

Inspector 

Page 119


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 16/01839/MFUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton
	2 Site Location Plan

	7 16/01250/MREM - Land South of Westgate, Old Malton, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 Block Plans
	5 Proposed Plans 1
	6 Proposed Plans 2
	7 Revised Plan 1
	8 Revised Plan 2
	9 Additional Plan
	10 Illustrative Plan
	11 Landscaping
	12 Streetscape
	13 Design And Access Statement

	8 16/01659/MFUL  - York Meadows, Sheriff Hutton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Block Plans
	5 Proposed Plans
	6 Parish 1
	7 Parish 2
	8 Design And Access Statement

	9 16/00072/OUT - Land At Golden Square, Low Marishes
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Design And Access Statement
	5 Parish

	10 16/01242/73A - Longhouse, Pottergate, Helmsley
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Plans
	4 Additional Plan
	5 Design And Access Statement
	6 Parish 1
	7 Parish 2

	13 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	14 Update on Appeal Decisions

